
CONDUCTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

 
The following is the sequence of events that is followed by the City of Unalaska Planning 
Commission and Platting Board in conducting a Public Hearing before the body. 
 

1. The Public Hearing is opened by the Chair of the Planning Commission/Platting 
Board who reads from the agenda. 

 
2. Any Ex-Parte questions or Commission member involvement are raised. If a 

Commission member(s) is excused, this is the proper time. 
 

3. Presentation by the staff. This is a short summary of the application, explanation 
of any maps, plats, exhibits, and code standards that might apply to the 
application. New written information not in the board packet is provided at this 
time. 

 
4. Presentation by the applicant. The applicant bears the responsibility for making 

the case or argument before the Commission. This is the time for Board members 
to ask questions of the applicant. Attempts to “negotiate” with the applicant 
should be conducted at this step (Step 4), while the public hearing is still open. 

 
5. Public Testimony. This includes those who are opposed to the application, and 

also the public in general. 
 

6. Rebuttal by the applicant. Final questions of all parties by the Commission. 
 

7. The Chair closes the Public Hearing and Commission deliberations begin. Once 
the hearing is closed, DO NOT REOPEN unless absolutely necessary. Questions 
of staff, the applicant, and the public are acceptable but uninitiated testimony is 
not. Attempts to “negotiate” with the applicant should be conducted at Step 4, not 
after the public hearing is closed. 

 
8. Commission discusses or debates the application. A motion must be made, with a 

second, and then final discussion. If a motion falls, an amendment(s) could be 
made to further or facilitate Commission final action. After “final action” is taken, 
reconsideration is possible per 8.04.060(G). 

 
 
 

 
DON’T BEND THE RULES FOR ONE, UNLESS YOU CHANGE THE RULES 

FOR ALL. 



Principles of the Unalaska Planning Commission 

1. The Position: In any community, the position of Planning Commissioner is a highly respected and 
honored one.   
 

2. The Job: The job of Planning Commissioner is to serve the public, as representatives of the City 
Council and to the best of their ability, in ensuring sound planning and growth management in 
Unalaska.  All decisions of the Planning Commission should be based on sound planning 
principles and practices, and not on the personal opinion of individual Planning Commissioners.  
Once the Planning Commission makes a recommendation to the City Council, the job of the 
Planning Commissioners and Planning Commission is over, in terms of that particular action.  
 

3. Integrity: Planning Commissioners are appointed by City Council.  The actions, behavior, and 
comportment of each Planning Commissioner reflect not only on that Planning Commissioner’s 
integrity – but also on the integrity of the City Council and of the entire City government. 
 

4. Collaboration: An individual Planning Commissioner is not a “lone wolf,” but is part of a collective 
body.  As such, each Planning Commissioner is expected to act in a collaborative manner with 
his and her fellow Planning Commissioners. 
 

5. Respect Each Other: While it is understandable to sometimes disagree with your fellow Planning 
Commissioners on issues brought before the body, and appropriate to publically vocalize that 
disagreement during Planning Commission meetings, a Planning Commissioner should always 
respect the opinion of their fellow Commissioners and treat each other with respect.   
 

6. Majority Rules: It is important to remember that, at the end of the day, the majority rules.  So, 
after each action is brought before the body, discussed, and voted upon, Planning 
Commissioners must accept and respect the rule of the majority – even if the ruling was counter 
to an individual Commissioner’s position.   
 

7. Respect Staff: A Planning Commissioner should respect the opinion of City Planning Staff, 
whether the Planning Commissioner agrees with staff or not. Planning Staff Members are 
professionals who are employed to serve not only the Planning Commission and general public, 
but the City Council. 
 

8. The Las Vegas Rule: What comes before the Planning Commission must stay before the 
Planning Commission.  This means there can be no outside negotiating with petitioners or with 
the public regarding applications brought before the Commission.  And, all discussions – pro or 
con – concerning a petition before the Planning Commission, must take place solely within 
Planning Commission meetings.   
 

9. Respect Applicants and Public: Each Planning Commissioner must always show professionalism 
and respect for applicants and the general public – regardless of the position held by that 
Planning Commissioner or by the Planning Commission. 
 

10. Upholding the Principles: Any member of the Planning Commission who finds that he or she 
cannot uphold and abide by the above principles should resign from the Commission.  



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 
AGENDA/PUBLIC NOTICE 

January 17, 2013 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
Call to Order:   
 
Roll Call: 
 
Additions to Agenda:   
 
Appearance Requests:   
 
Minutes:  November 8, 2012 
 
Announcements/Public Input:  
 
Public Hearing:  

1. Public Hearing to review the preliminary plat of Unalaska Tideland Survey (UTS) 103, a replat of 
Alaska Tideland Survey No. 1452, Plat No. 95-12, Aleutian Islands Recording District, located in 
Captains Bay. 

 
Regular Meeting: 

2. Planning Commission/Platting Board Annual Report for 2012. 
 

3. Receipt of Resolution 2012-17 giving preliminary plat approval to Parkside Estates Subdivision 
Revision 1, a resubdivision of Parkside Estates Subdivision Plat No. 2011-7, Aleutian Islands 
Recording District, located in the Valley on East Broadway Avenue. 
 

Work Session:  

4. Presentation on Local Hazard Mitigation Plan by Mr. Scott Simmons of URS Corporation and Mr. 
Scott Nelsen of the State of Alaska Department of Homeland Security & Emergency 
Management, along with the Aleutians Pribilof Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) and 
the Unalaska Department of Public Safety. 
 

Commission Discussion     
 
Meeting Review  
 
Adjournment.   
 

 



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Regular Meeting 
CHAIR AGENDA 
January 17, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 

Call to Order:  State time for the record. 

Roll Call:  Ask for a roll call. 

Additions to Agenda:  Ask staff. 

Appearance Requests:  Ask if anyone has requested to appear. 

Minutes:  Minutes from the public hearing and regular meeting held on November 8, 2012 

1. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve. 
2. Call for a second to the motion. 
3. Commission discussion. 
4. Close the Commission discussion. 
5. Vote. 

 
Announcements/Public Input:  Any subject. 

Public Hearing:  

1. Public Hearing to review the preliminary plat of Unalaska Tideland Survey (UTS) 
103, a replat of Alaska Tideland Survey No. 1452, Plat No. 95-12, Aleutian Islands 
Recording District, located in Captains Bay. 
 

a. Open the Public Hearing. 
b. Chair calls for potential Ex Parte Communications and potential Conflicts of 

Interest from Commissioners. 
c. Staff Presentation. 
d. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of staff. 
e. Applicant Presentation. 
f. Ask if Commissioners have any questions for the applicant. 
g. Public Testimony.  (Ask person to state name for the record.) 
h. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of the public. 
i. Close the Public Hearing. 
j. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve 

Resolution 2013-01 
k. Call for a second to the motion. 
l. Commission discussion. 
m. Close the Commission discussion. 
n. Vote on the Resolution. 
o. Close the public hearing and call for a motion to move into a regular meeting. 
p. Ask for a second. 
q. Call for a vote by consensus (“all in favor of adjourning into a regular meeting, 

say aye”). 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Regular Meeting: 

2. Planning Commission/Platting Board Annual Report for 2012. 
a. Staff Presentation. 
b. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of staff. 
c. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve 

Resolution 2013-02 
d. Call for a second to the motion. 
e. Commission discussion. 
f. Close the Commission discussion. 
g. Vote. 
h. Move to the next item on the agenda. 

 
3. Receipt of Resolution 2012-17 giving preliminary plat approval to Parkside Estates 

Subdivision Revision 1, a resubdivision of Parkside Estates Subdvision Plat No. 
2011-7, Aleutian Islands Recording District, located in the Valley on East Broadway 
Avenue. 
 

a. Staff Presentation. 
b. Close the regular meeting and move into a work session. 

 
Work Session: 

 
4. Presentation on Local Hazard Mitigation Plan by Mr. Scott Simmons of URS 

Corporation and Mr. Scott Nelsen of the State of Alaska Department of Homeland 
Security & Emergency Management, along with the Aleutians Pribilof Local 
Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) and the Unalaska Department of Public 
Safety. 

a. Presentation. 
 
Commission Discussion     
 
Meeting Review   
 
Adjournment. State time for the record. 



 
 
 
Chair Help Sheet 

 
Approval of Minutes Steps: 
 
1. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve. 
2. Call for a second to the motion. 
3. Commission discussion. 
4. Close the Commission discussion. 
5. Vote. 
 
Public Hearing Steps: 
 
1. Open the Public Hearing. 
2. Chair calls for potential Ex Parte Communications and potential Conflicts of Interest from 

Commissioners. 
3. Staff Presentation. 
4. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of staff. 
5. Applicant Presentation. 
6. Ask if Commissioners have any questions for the applicant. 
7. Public Testimony.  (Ask person to state name for the record.) 
8. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of the public. 
9. Close the Public Hearing. 
10. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve Resolution 2013-xx. 
11. Call for a second to the motion. 
12. Commission discussion. 
13. Close the Commission discussion. 
14. Vote. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
Thursday, November 8, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

 
Call to Order:    Chair Chris Bobbitt called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M. 
 
Staff Present:    Erin Reinders, AICP, Planning Director 
 
Public Present:  Mr. Jack Sternhagen 
 
Roll Call:     
Commissioners present: 
Chris Bobbitt, Chair 
Chris Spengler  
Vicki Williams 
Commissioners excused: 
Steven Gregory       
John Laskowski 
 
Additions to the Agenda: None 
 
Appearance Requests: None 

 
Minutes: Ms. Williams motioned to approve the minutes from the September 20, 2012. There 
was a second.  Chair Bobbitt called for a vote by consensus on the minutes and the motion 
passed by unanimous consensus (3-0). The minutes from 9/20/2012 were adopted. 
 
Ms. Williams motioned to approve the minutes of the October 18, 2012 meetings. There was a 
second. Chair Bobbitt called for a vote by consensus on the minutes and the motion passed by 
unanimous consensus (3-0). The minutes from 10/18/2012 were adopted. 
 
Planning Commission Public Hearings:  

A. Application for the Conditional Use request from Mr. Jack Sternhagen to allow one 
(1) residential dwelling unit in the existing commercial structure located on Lots 8, 
9 , and 11 of Block 1, USS 1992, Unalaska Townsite, Unalaska, Alaska. 

 
Chair Bobbitt opened the public hearing and called for any ex parte contact or conflicts of 
interest to be disclosed. Hearing none, the Chair called for staff presentation. 
 
Staff Presentation: Ms. Reinders stated that Mr. Sternhagen’s Conditional Use request was 
virtually an extension of a conditional use permit approved last year allowing for a residential 
use in a commercially zoned building. Ms. Reinders stated that Mr. Sternhagen had been 
informed that the permit was about to expire since construction had not begun, so he had 
reapplied for the Conditional Use.  
 
Applicant Testimony: Mr. Sternhagen noted that the plans remained the same as from his last 
application in December 2011. Chair Bobbitt asked about the possibility to replat to combine the 
lots. Mr. Sternhagen stated that Planning Administrator Rosie Glorso had suggested that he 



Page 2 of 3 
 

consider replatting the lots into one lot and he was open to a replat in the future. Chair Bobbitt 
asked if there were any questions from the Commission. Mr. Spengler asked Jack Sternhagen 
is trying to rent the place until he gets the funds to develop the property. Mr. Sternhagen stated 
that he is not going to rent the place until it is up to code and the plan is still to develop the place 
to meet the requirements of a General Commercial zone. 

 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any other questions from the Public or the Commissioners. 
Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt called for a vote by consensus on Resolution 2012-15.  
 
Motion: Ms. Williams moved to approve Resolution 2012-15. There was a second.  
 
Vote: The vote was unanimous (3-0). The motion carried. 
 
B. A Resolution to the City of Unalaska City Council recommending the consideration to 
purchase Tract A-1, Creekside Estates Subdivision, Amundson Addition No. 2, Plat 98-2, 
Aleutian Islands Recording District. 
 
Staff Presentation: Ms. Reinders stated that the City had been approached by a property 
owner, Mr. John Zirlott, who was interested in selling approximately 6 acres to the City for use 
as a park and explained that this was quite consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  Ms. 
Reinders explained that the PCR Committee would also consider this item and that the City 
Council would have the final say. 
 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any questions from the Commission. Mr. Spengler asked if the 
adjacent lot owners have been informed of the application, if there had been anyone who 
opposed it, and if a notice was sent out to adjacent lot owners. Ms. Reinders stated that a site 
visit did indicate that people use this area much like an open space park-like area already.  Ms. 
Reinders stated that item was included in the Public Notice for the meeting posted around town, 
but no individual letters were mailed. Ms. Reinders stated that if this Resolution is approved and 
goes to City Council, it will be posted in the City Council Public Notice and that meeting will 
provide for an opportunity for public input as well.  
 
Chair Bobbitt requested that notices be sent to adjacent property owners prior to consideration 
by City Council.  Ms. Reinders stated that that could be done.   
 
There being no other questions from the Commissioners, Chair Bobbitt called for a vote by 
consensus on Resolution 2012-16.  
 
Motion: Mr. Spengler moved to approve Resolution 2012-16. There was a second. 
 
Vote: The vote was unanimous (3-0). The motion carried. 
 
C. Planning Determination for Proposed Hillside Estates Subdivision. A Preliminary Plat 
for Hillside Estates Subdivision, to subdivide Tract B, Blueberry Hill Subdivision Addition 
No. 2, Plat 96-9, and create four (4) lots along East Broadway Avenue and one (1) 
remainder tract.  
 
Staff Presentation: Ms. Reinders submitted for the record the planning determination that the 
expiration date of the Preliminary Plat of Hillsides Estates Subdivision is July 2, 2013. 
 
Adjournment.  Chair Bobbitt adjourned the meeting at 5:45 P.M. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
   
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF __________ 2013 BY THE CITY OF 
UNALASKA, ALASKA PLANNING COMMISSION. 
 
 
_________________________________ _________________________ 
Chris Bobbitt Date 
Chair 
 
_________________________________ _________________________ 
Erin Reinders, AICP Date 
Recording Secretary 
 
Prepared by Rosie Glorso and Veronica De Castro, Planning Department 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Preliminary Plat Review 

UTS 103 



CITY OF UNALASKA, DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Tidelands Platting Action for Unalaska Tidelands Survey (UTS) 103 

A Replat of ATS 1452 

 

Meeting Date: 17 January 2013 

 

Unalaska Tidelands Survey (UTS) 103, a replat of Alaska Tidelands Survey (ATS) 1452, Plat No. 95-

12, Aleutian Islands Recording District, located within portions of Section 19, 20, 21, 29, and 30, 

Township 73 South, Range 118 West of the Seward Meridian, Unalaska, Alaska.  

 

I. BACKGROUND 

 

Landowner:    City of Unalaska 

 

Subject:   Preliminary Plat for UTS 103, a replat of ATS 1452. 

 

Location:   Approximately 3.5 road miles from City Hall in Captains Bay. 

 

Lot Size: Subdivision contains 330.59± acres in total and is to be divided into four tracts as 

follows:  

 Tract A, 6.37 acres 

 Tract B, 11.40 acres 

 Tract C, 2.71 acres 

 Tract D, 310.10 acres 

 

Access: Captains Bay. Uplands adjacent to the tidelands being subdivided have private road 

access via Captains Bay Road. The publicly-dedicated portion of Captains Bay Road 

which is maintained by the City of Unalaska ends at the northern boundary of Lot 1, 

USS 8449, and the privately-maintained road continues from there. 

 

Zoning:   Of the original 330.59 acres of ATS 1452, approximately 37 acres were rezoned from 

Subsistence Tidelands to Developable Tidelands effective May 22, 2012.  The proposed 
Tracts A, B, and C are zoned Developable Tidelands. Tract D has a small portion zoned 

Developable Tidelands with the remainder being within the Subsistence Tidelands Zoning 

District.  
 

Platting History:  

 The deed (Patent No. 375) to ATS 1452 was conveyed from the State of Alaska to the City of 

Unalaska on November 17, 1995 and it was recorded on Book 42, Pages 444-445. 

 ATS 1452 was recorded by PND Engineering in the Aleutian Islands Recording District on 

April 7, 1995. 

 Prior to 1995, the tidelands were unsurveyed/unplatted State waters. 

 

 

 



Preliminary Tidelands Plat: UTS 103 
January 17, 2013 
 

2 

II. ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 

 

1. The proposed Tracts A, B, and C are zoned Developable Tidelands. Tract D has a small portion zoned 

Developable Tidelands with the remainder being within the Subsistence Tidelands Zoning District. 
2. The area to the south of Tracts B and C towards the at the head of Captains Bay is now identified 

as UTS 103, Tract D, and is approximately 310.10 acres in area. A significant portion of Tract D is 

not shown this plat, but its boundaries can be seen by comparing this tidelands plat with ATS 1452, 

Plat No. 95-12 AIRD. 

3. Bill Shaishnikoff has applied to lease the tidelands directly adjacent of his native allotment.  These 

tidelands include Tracts B and C, which have been divided into two separate tracts in order to 

allow for future development phasing.  As part of that tideland lease application process, Mr. 

Shaishnikoff is required to submit a Tideland Subdivision Plat.   

4. Bering Shai Marine, LLC, is in the process of obtaining other necessary permits from agencies 

such as the US Army Corps of Engineers to provide a secure marine terminal for docking of deep 

draft vessels and capacity to offload large equipment and cargo. This is a required step in the 

tideland leasing process for the City. 

5. Building permits for proposed improvements are required to be obtained from the City of Unalaska 

Department of Public Works prior to construction.  A discussion of road improvements and utility 

provisions and related easements will likely result from such applications.  

6. No public utilities exist within 300 feet of the areas included within this Preliminary Plat at this 

time. 

7. The tidelands impacted by this plat are within Captains Bay, with much of the associated uplands 

served by a privately maintained road. The publicly-maintained portion of Captains Bay Road 

stops before OSI.  

8. Existing (such as the gravel ramp) and proposed improvements (such as docks) are to be indicated 

on the Preliminary Plat, and is a condition of approval.  

9. The fifty-foot public access easement is required per Alaska Statutes 38.05.127 and Alaska 

Administrative Code 11AAC51.045, and has been indicated on the Preliminary Plat. 

 

III. RECOMMENDATION 
 

In accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting 

and Subdivision), the City of Unalaska Department of Planning recommends conditional approval of 

the preliminary plat for Unalaska Tidelands Survey (UTS) 103, with the following conditions to be met 

before acceptance of the Preliminary Plat and submission of the Final Plat, as outlined on Resolution 

2013-01: 

1. Show and label existing improvements, such as the barge loading ramp. 

2. Show a tie from one monument within the subdivision to one of the existing City control 

monuments with bearing and distance. 

3. Set one new primary monument and provide coordinates in NAD 83 Alaska State Plane Zone 10, 

U.S. foot. 

4. Submit a closure report. 

 



Preliminary Tidelands Plat: UTS 103 
January 17, 2013 
 

3 

 

 

 

 

______________________________  ________________________________ 

Erin Reinders, AICP     Rosie Glorso 

Planning Director     Planning Administrator 

 

 

Enc: Draft Resolution 2013-01 

 Preliminary Plat for UTS 103 

 Parent Plat ATS 1452 

 Aerial imagery from GeoBlade 

  

 











rosie
Callout
ATS 1452



City of Unalaska 
Unalaska, Alaska 

Platting Board Resolution 2013-01 
 

A PLATTING BOARD PUBLIC HEARING TO REVIEW THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF 
UNALASKA TIDELANDS SURVEY (UTS) 103, A REPLAT OF ALASKA TIDELANDS 
SURVEY (ATS) 1452, PLAT NO. 95-12, LOCATED IN CAPTAINS BAY, ALEUTIAN 

ISLANDS RECORDING DISTRICT. 
 
WHEREAS, Title 8 UCO Section 8.08.060 sets forth the procedures for the subdivision and platting 
of tideland and provides that the Planning Commission shall act as the Platting Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, the owners of ATS 1452 is the City of Unalaska; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant for a tidelands lease, with the permission of landowner, desires to 
subdivide the aforementioned property for the purpose of creating new tidelands lease areas in 
accordance with City Manager Regulations identified in Title 7 UCO Section 7.12.010; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Department of Planning, Department of Public Works, and 
Department of Public Utilities staff has reviewed the proposed plat and have requested revisions as 
described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, notices were posted and mailed in accordance with Title 8, UCO Section 8.08.020(F); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Planning Commission held a public hearing on January 17, 2013 
to consider this platting action and to hear testimony of the public and City Staff, and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Platting Authority approves the preliminary plat of the 
UTS 103, with the following conditions of approval in accordance with the standards outlined in 
Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting and Subdivision): 
 

1. Show and label existing improvements, such as the barge loading ramp. 
2. Show a tie from one monument within the subdivision to one of the existing City control 

monuments with bearing and distance. 
3. Set one new primary monument and provide coordinates in NAD 83 Alaska State Plane Zone 

10, U.S. foot. 
4. Submit a closure report. 

 
Upon the correction of the aforementioned deficiencies submit a corrected preliminary plat to the 
Department of Planning for review and concurrence before proceeding to final plat. This conditional 
plat approval becomes effective if there are no appeals within ten (10) working days after the 
Planning Commission action and shall remain in effect for one year. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____DAY OF____________ 2013, BY THE PLATTING 
BOARD OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 
 
 
__________________   __________________________ 
Chris Bobbitt     Erin Reinders, AICP 
Chair      Secretary 



 
 

CITY OF UNALASKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 

2012 ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 

 
 

This annual report is designed to serve multiple functions: to summarize the 
planning activities of the Unalaska Planning Commission; to serve as a resource 
document; to project future planning needs and activities; and to meet the 
requirements of § 2.60.090, Unalaska Code of Ordinances. 
 
The Planning Commission, Platting Board, Department of Planning, and Unalaska 
City Council refer to the adopted Comprehensive Plan, Platting and Subdivision 
Regulations, Zoning Code of Ordinances, Zoning Map, and other applicable codes 
for all decisions rendered. 
 
The following residents of Unalaska served on the City of Unalaska’s Planning 
Commission and Platting Board throughout 2012: 
 

Chair Chris Bobbitt 
Vice Chair John Laskowski 

Steven Gregory 
Chris Spengler 
Vicki Williams 

 
 



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 2 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION AND PLATTING BOARD 
RESOLUTION 2013-02 

 
 
In accordance with § 2.60.090 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances, the City of 
Unalaska’s Planning Commission officially adopts the following annual report, filing 
the same with the Unalaska City Council. 
 
 
 

CITY OF UNALASKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
 

BY: ____________________________ 
    Chris Bobbitt, Chair 

 
 

 ____________________________ 
    Erin Reinders, Secretary 

 
 
 
DATE OF ADOPTION: _____________________ 



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 3 of 11 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
 
Alaska State law gives incorporated municipalities the authority and responsibility for 
planning, platting, and land use regulation. In addition to providing for the orderly 
and efficient use of land and other resources, planning can establish ground rules for 
development for the whole community and provide the means by which residents 
participate in important decisions about their community’s future. With effective 
planning, a community can define its character and realize tangible benefits.  
 
The Unalaska Code of Ordinances establishes the Planning Commission and 
Platting Board to help assure orderly growth of Unalaska and offers additional 
guidance regarding their functions, power and duties, which include: 

 To recognize and utilize such basic information necessary to understand past 
trends, present conditions, and forces affecting community growth and 
development;  

 To prepare and keep current a Comprehensive Plan for meeting present 
requirements and future needs for community growth and development as may 
be foreseen by the Commission/Board;  

 To establish principles and policies for guiding actions affecting growth in the city;  

 To prepare and to recommend to the City Council ordinances, regulations, or 
other proposals promoting orderly development indicated as desirable by the 
Comprehensive Plan;  

 To exercise jurisdiction over platting as provided in Chapter 8.08, and to act upon 
requests for variances, conditional uses, and zone amendments as provided in 
Chapter 8.12;  

 To keep the City Council and general public informed and advised as to matters 
before the Commission/Board;  

 To conduct such meetings, as required, to gather information necessary for the 
drafting, establishment, and maintenance of the Comprehensive Plan and the 
ordinances and regulations relating to it; and  

 To perform other duties lawfully assigned to the Commission/Board or which 
have a bearing on the preparation or accomplishment of the Comprehensive 
Plan.  

 
§ 2.60.090 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances requires each board and committee 
to submit an annual report which summarizes the activities which have occurred 
during the previous year. The Annual Report is a mechanism for monitoring those 
activities and for presenting to the City Council the goals and objectives for Planning 
in the coming year.  
 

 
 
 
 



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 4 of 11 

SUMMARY OF PLANNING ACTIONS FOR 2012 
 

I.  General Statistics (February 1, 2012 – December 31, 2012) 
Planning Commission/Platting Board meetings are held at 7:00pm on the third 
Thursday of the month, as needed, in the Council Chambers. The PC/PB actions for 
2012 as summarized below: 
 

 Zone Amendments Considered/Recommended   1/1 

 Property Acquisitions Considered/Recommended  4/3 

 Code Revisions Considered/Recommended   1/1 

 Conditional Use Permits Considered/Granted   4/4 

 Plats Reviewed/Approved      4/4 

 Total Number of Meetings or Work Sessions      9 
 
 
II. Planning Commission Recommendations to Council 
 
Zoning Map Amendments 
The Planning Commission reviewed one 
request for a zone amendment or 
rezoning for an approximately 36.759 acre 
portion of ATS 1452 in Captains Bay from 
Subsistence Tidelands to the Developable 
Tidelands Zoning District. After conducting 
two public hearings to consider testimony 
of the public, the Planning Commission 
recommended the rezoning to the City 
Council by approving Resolution 2012-02 
on April 19, 2012.  After two readings and 
a public hearing, the City Council 
amended the City Unalaska Zoning Map 
by adopting Ordinance 2012-02 on May 
22, 2012. 
 

 
Property Acquisitions 
The Planning Commission considered four property acquisitions, recommending 
three for the City Council to approve.  Three of the properties were tidelands 
currently owned by the State of Alaska and the fourth property was offered for 
purchase by the property owner in order to increase the City’s park system.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 5 of 11 

The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2012-04 recommending the 
application requesting the acquisition of approximately 248 acres of tidelands in 
Dutch Harbor from the State of Alaska, approved Resolution 2012-05 recommending 
the application requesting the acquisition of approximately 2.8 acres of tidelands in 
Iliuliuk Harbor from the State of Alaska and disapproved Resolution 2012-06 which 
recommended the application requesting the acquisition of approximately 136 acres 
of tidelands in Captains Bay from the State of Alaska on April 19, 2012. These 
actions were forwarded to the City Council, who then approved of the application for 
acquiring all three sections of tidelands in City Council Resolution 2012-32 of May 8, 
2012.  
 
The Planning Department has subsequently submitted application packets for all 
three sections of tidelands to the State of Alaska.  After receiving detailed feedback 
regarding the applications and the State’s policies regarding acquisitions, the 
application for the Iliuliuk Harbor tidelands has been withdrawn and the remaining 
two sections are being greatly reduced as any acquisition must be directly related to 
pending or existing development.  Negotiations are still ongoing with the State. The 
locations of these tidelands are indicated below: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 6 of 11 

On November 8, 2012, the 
Planning Commission approved 
Resolution 2012-16, 
recommending the purchase of a 
5.94 acre parcel to add to our park 
system. The tract of land is located 
at 1857 East Broadway Avenue, 
directly across the Community 
Park with existing wetlands and 
ponds.  This opportunity was also 
reviewed by the PCR Advisory 
Committee at their December 19, 
2012 meeting and they supported 
the purchase as well.  These 
recommendations will be 
forwarded to the City Council, who 
will discuss this opportunity at a 
Council Meeting early in 2013. 
 
Code Revisions 
On July 19, 2012, the Planning Commission conducted a formal public hearing and 
voted to approve Resolution 2012-09 recommending that the City Council approve 
amending the Unalaska City Code Chapter 8.04 clarifying meeting and approval 
procedures, Chapter 8.06 adding and updating Definitions, Chapter 8.08 revising 
platting procedures and subdivision requirements, Chapter 8.12 altering the lot 
dimension and size limitations, clarifying permitted uses and general provisions.  
This was after the potential changes and updates to Title 8 were introduced and 
discussed at the were introduced and discussed at the November 17, 2011 Planning 
Commission Meeting, the December 1, 2011 Planning Commission Meeting, the 
January 24, 2012 City Council Work Session, and April 19, 2012 Planning 
Commission Meeting.   
 
The proposed changes were then taken to City Council.  After two readings and one 
public hearing, the City Council amended the proposed changes slightly and passed 
Ordinance 2012-07 adopting the changes to Title 8 at their September 11, 2012 
meeting, which became effective October 1, 2012. 
 

 

 

III. Planning Commission Actions and Activities 
 
January 19, 2012 
The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2012-01, adopting the 2011 Annual 
Report to be shared with City Council.   
 
 



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 7 of 11 

March 29, 2012 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding the potential rezoning of 
tidelands in Captains Bay.  The Commission then voted to postpone the vote for 
Resolution 2012-02 to allow for additional discussion and public input. (See the 
Zoning Map Amendment portion of previous section for additional information.) 
 
April 19, 2012  
The Planning Commission held a continued public hearing and approved Resolution 
2012-02 recommending that the City Council rezone approximately 37 acres in 
Captains Bay from Subsistence Tidelands to Developable Tidelands. (See the 
Zoning Map Amendment portion of previous section for additional information.) 
 
The Planning Commission considered the application to acquire three sections of 
tidelands from the State of Alaska.  The Commission voted to approve Resolution 
2012-04 recommending the application for additional tidelands in Dutch Harbor to 
the City Council, to approve Resolution 2012-05 recommending the application for 
additional tidelands in Iliuliuk Bay, and disapproved Resolution 2012-06 
recommending the application for additional tidelands in Captains Bay. (See the 
Property Acquisitions portion of the previous section for additional information.) 
 
The Planning Commission held a Work Session to review suggested changes to 
Title 8 and to obtain public testimony and input regarding the proposed update. (See 
the Code Revision portion of previous section for additional information.) 
 
June 21, 2012  
The Planning Commission held a Work Session to discuss the role of a Land Use 
Plan for the community and an opportunity to receive assistance in developing one 
for Unalaska from the American Planning Association. 
 
July 19, 2012 Meeting: 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Planning Commission 
approved Resolution 2012-08 
allowing for a Conditional Use of 
one (1) residential dwelling unit 
within an existing warehouse 
located at 1757 East Broadway 
Avenue in a General 
Commercial zoning district. 
Conditional Use Permit #2012-
01 was issued on July 30, 2012. 
 



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 8 of 11 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing and approved Resolution 2012-09, 
recommending the approval of several amendments to Title 8 to the City Council.  
(See the Code Revision portion of previous section for additional information.) 
 
August 16, 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 20, 2012  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Planning Commission 
approved Resolution 
2012-10 allowing for a 
Conditional Use of a 
temporary construction 
camp at 42 Gilman Road, 
on Tract B of Marineways 
Subdivision, located in a 
General Commercial 
zoning district. Temporary 
Conditional Use Permit 
#2012-02 was issued on 
August 27, 2012. 

The Planning Commission 
approved Resolution 2012-
11 allowing for a 
Conditional Use of three 
(3) residential units within 
an existing warehouse 
located at 217 Biorka 
Drive, Building 616 in a 
General Commercial 
zoning district. Conditional 
Use Permit #2012-03 was 
issued on August 27, 2012. 

The Planning Commission held an 
informal work session to discuss the 
Preliminary Plat approval and related 
expiration date of the Hillside Estates 
Subdivision, A Subdivision of Tract B, 
Blueberry Hill Subdivision, Addition 2, 
Plat 96-9 with the applicant.  A 
Planning Determination was later 
made by the Planning Director to 
extend the expiration date of the 
Preliminary Plat of Hillside Estates 
Subdivision to July 2, 2013. This plat 
has not been recorded yet. 
 
 



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 9 of 11 

November 8, 2012 Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2012-16 recommending that the 
City Council consider purchasing approximately 5.94 acres at 1857 East Broadway 
Avenue in order to expand our park system.  (See the Property Acquisitions portion 
of the previous section for additional information.) 
 
IV. Platting Board 
No applications were received. 
 
V. Platting Authority  
Per UCO 8.08.040(B), the Planning Director is the Platting Authority for abbreviated 
plat review and approval. All actions are then shared with the Planning Commission/ 
Platting Board for informational purposes. The Platting Authority held four (4) public 
hearings in 2012. These are summarized below: 
 
 
On March 20, 2012, the 
Platting Authority approved 
Resolution 2012-03, for the 
Preliminary Plat of Puffin-
Ptarmigan Flats Subdivision.  
This was done to reestablish 
monuments and to 
dedicate/vacate easements for 
the Lake Ilulaq drainage project 
and for improvements to the 
City electrical system. This plat 
was recorded as plat number 
2012-9. 
 

The Planning Commission approved 
Resolution 2012-15 allowing for a 
Conditional Use of one (1) residential 
dwelling unit within the existing 
commercial structure located at 28 
North Second Street in a General 
Commercial Zoning District.  Permit has 
not yet been issued as conditions of 
approval have not been fully 
addressed. 



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 10 of 11 

On August 17, 2012, the 
Platting Authority approved 
Resolution 2012-12, for the 
Preliminary Plat of 
McLaughlin Subdivision, a 
resubdivision of Lot 1, 
Hawley Subdivision located 
at the corner of East 
Broadway and Choate Lane. 
This plat has not been 
recorded yet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

On August 17, 2012, the 
Platting Authority approved 
Resolution 2012-13, for the 
Preliminary Plat of Buzz 
Lightyear Subdivision, a 
subdivision of Lot 1 and Tract 
2, Jesse Lee Subdivision, Plat 
93-13. This plat has not been 
recorded yet. 

On December 3, 2012, the 
Platting Authority approved 
Resolution 2012-17 for the 
Preliminary Plat of Parkside 
Estates Subdivision Addition 
No. 1, A Subdivision of Lot 
1, Parkside Estates 
Subdivision, Plat 2011-7. 
This plat has not been 
recorded yet.  



Planning Commission & Platting Board 2012 Annual Report Page 11 of 11 

 
VI. Summary of Appeals Cases and Actions: 
 
No appeals were received. 
 
 
VII. Department of Planning Activities: 
 
The Department of Planning’s main responsibility is coordinating community 
planning and development, land use, and capital growth within the City of Unalaska. 
Services include assisting the public, Mayor and City Council, Planning Commission, 
and other City departments by providing information, guidance, and direction on land 
use issues and regulations. Under the guidance of the department, the City’s annual 
five-year capital improvement, replacement, and maintenance program is 
developed. The department also initiates and directs studies and reports relating to 
long and short-term planning needed for both community growth and development, 
in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Departmental goals for 2013 include the following: 
 
 Produce new Zoning Map and Address Maps in GIS, which in addition to other 

major map products should be updated and improved annually.   
 Continue to work with other City departments on GIS development and 

implementation.   
 Together with the Departments of Public Works and Public Safety, the Planning 

Department should help to coordinate the refinement of the building permit and 
enforcement systems, and recommend necessary revisions to the City Code. 

 Continue developing training opportunities and providing educational materials to 
the Planning Commission. 

 Begin to implement the First-Year Action Plan as recommended in the Unalaska 
Comprehensive Plan 2020 Housing Strategy Plan. 

 Revise CMMP process to include Planning Commission formal review and 
comment. 

 Develop a Land Use Plan to help guide decisions related to the development 
pressures and address actions items identified in the Comprehensive Plan and 
the Housing Strategy.   

 Create an email notification system containing a monthly newsletter to increase 
community awareness and involvement in community planning initiatives as well 
as development activities.   

 Develop handouts defining the submittal dates and meeting schedules as well as 
documents that outline various submittal and application processes and 
requirements. 
 

 
 

 






	Conducting a Public Hearing
	Unalaska Planning Commissioner Principles to Remember
	Agenda
	Chair Agenda
	11-08-2012 Minutes
	Preliminary Plat for UTS 103, a Replat of ATS 1452
	Staff Report
	Preliminary Plat
	Parent Plat
	Aerial Imagery
	Draft Resolution 2013-01

	2012 Annual Report to Council
	Draft Resolution 2013-02

	Informational only: Resolution 2012-17 Platting Authority



